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No.@ ... ~~~ 
THE STATE OF ALABAMA 

BALDWIN COUNTY. 
= = ==== -== ------ = 

CIRCUIT COURT 

............................................... Ter~, 191 ..... :~ 
THE STATE 

vs. 

......... B.~-~.'fY. ... ll ... C9.9.P.~.'f ........................... . 

·· ························----------------------------------·-················ 

INDICTMENT. 

. 
... ............................ N.Q ................ ... ................. .. . 

Prosecutor. I 

- I 
WITNESSES: 

......... Jahn ... P.U.r.i.fay. ................................. . 

......... C.h?.-.r.J:..~-~-- -E ... W.~JJ~J:..P:S. ................ .. . 
. 

.......... ,:r .• -M-.·V:0-1-t-z., ......................... ,:-············· 

... ...... Q.ac~X---H&ll ........................ t ...... ...... . . 

...... ... w.,.n .•.. s~-~P.~~.:Y.9JL ............................ . 

......... R. •. w. .J?adget .t ....... l.W~.'RJJ.~-'-··· · --· 

•. 

········----------- ---------------------------------- --------------·········· 
Times Print-Bay Minette. 

r k 

• Grand Jury No . . 2l. .......... . 

·' 
A TRUE BILL. 

........... :r..~-~~-~-~.?:-~-~-~-~~--!-............................. .. 
Foreman Grand Jury. 

Filed in open Court and in the 

presence of the Grand Jury on the 

. ...... ~Qt.h ............ day oL .... O.~~g_);>_~x ..... . 

&&l&&.~ ... l. 90 8 . 

. ........... J. !'.¥~.:l.C?.b1i.~ . .t ...... ..... .. .. . .............. ..... . 

~sented in o 
siding Juda-e by 

Clerk. 

. ....................... ........ ~ .. .. .. ................ ~ ......... .. 
Clerk . 

Bail fixed in open CoQrt a t 

'- Three hundred l)ollt. :rs , this 

30th , day of october , 190@. 
•. 

Sam'l B BrOwnE 

JUdge . 

t 

state if Alabam& 

Baldwin county . 

I.T. W. Richerson , clerk Circuit court 

do hereby certify the fore going to be a t r ue 

and correct co 0y of the Indictment in cau~e 

of State o r Al ab&ma v s Henry H cooper • 

Jan 3rd,l920 . 

Clerk circuit court Baldwin co , Alab~ma • 



Maggie Roberta, ) 
C ,..omplainant) 

) 

VS ) 

Bu~hman Abstract & ) 
Investment Company. 

Np 251 

In The Circuit Cpurt ofBalawin County. 

In Equity. 

Comes now the respondent ana Crose ~~mplainant ana move to exclude 

the paper ne.rkect " official Receipt fo.r 19o8 taxes " upon the follOwing 

grouno.s lst there is no aftio.avi t or other proot· attached thereto showing 

saio. purported rece ipt to be genuine or was in fact such a receipt.~ 
JP-U~~ 

2nd because it is illegal, irrele~an) ana i~ate~i&l 
~~~~~~k~~~\!~. 
~~ 1t~v.a--v.~ (!;:;__ e,v&X-~ v<--. W4_'- <f . . ""- ,-y ~, 

. ' !; (/_/ ' 
~- -:.;;;-___ ([_-::r-~-~~-c:.~_L_:..Y.. __ ~ 



Maggie Roberts, ) 

C omp lainan t • 
) 
) 

No 251 

In The Circuit Court of Baldwin County. 
VS ) 

Buchman Abstract & ) 
In Eql[i ty. 

Investment Company. ) 

Comes now the respondent and erose -complainant and moves to exclude 

the paper dated May 2nd l9o5, purporting to be a receipt for the taxes 

for the year l9o4 of Est. of Thos S James and the paper dated May 3ra, 

~905 purporting to be a receipt for the year 19o4 taxes from Maggie -

Roberts upon the following grounds • let because t r ere 11l no affidavit 

or other proof attached to said receipts showing said purported receipts 

to be gerru.ine or were in fact e ·such receipts. 2nd because .:they are - -:t-
.J ~/l~ UA .-~.L %~e.e__ ~ '?-1ft 

il~egal, ~rre~).v~nt and immaterial. . cr-
~ t:.-yC-. .j fh h ./ r ~.- ~ CZz/~(1'(~ c,-1 ../. ~ (_ / 

~ ~vo"'" !:::- ~~e;<:.. · ,/-_ I (! f" 7 

J /(1..._/ 't.. I 

----------------------------~--------
Solicioitors for Respondent & Cross Complab 

-ant. 

-



MAGGIE ROBERTS, 
Complainant. 

NO. 

IN EQ.UITY 
vs 

I ~~! THE. OIRCUJ7 CO:'JRT OF 
BUCHMANN ABSTRACT & 
r :·TVEST:.:EnT co:I? AJY, 

Respcndent. 

-,}! .1', 

BALDWDl COU\JTY, ALABAMA. 

Complainant objects to the admission of the tax deed 

offered by Respondent upon the following groundS: 

1. That the taxes for the year l906 for which the 

lands described in said deed purport to have been sold, were paid. 

2. Respondent has failed t o show a compliance with all 

necessary requirements of law justifying a valid decree of sale by 

the Probate Court of t he lands described in the deed, 2nd particular­

ly has not affirmatively shown: 

(a) 

(b ) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Th~t the Probate Court had jurisdiction to or~er 
said sale. 

That the Tax Collector h~d made a search for personal 
property ·before pr aying fo r a sale of t he re~lty. 

That t he Tax Collector h~d repor t ed t ha~ he ~as unable 
t o collect t ~xes ass essed aga inst sa i i l ~ni without a 
sale of such l and, under Sect i on 4046 cf the Code of 
1896 (:t.-rese'!lt Co.ie 2268). 

Tha~ notice was is sued to t he ;~rty a~ inst whom t he 
lana. was a ssessed unde r Seetion 4049 of 1896 Code (now 
2271). 

~aJ an6~~5- the provisions of 1896 Code Sections 4Ca? 
or~2Z?O ~2Z?~cs~a?~05~?.~~ 4~608 )(present Sections 22S9; 

' ' , .... J ...,z 2 had been com}Jlied wi t h .. 

r Con~pl ainant. 
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. - r 

1 
ja?v_, ~~ ;'. 

The State of Alabama
1 

lflobile County 
-

_) 
M.AGGI8 .:WBEH.TS 

Bi--LDWIN Com plaioaot. ( 
Circuit Court of~County 

No. vs. 
BUCID.!ANN ._3ST _:.d.0'l' & 
.:; 01:.? .o.NY 

IN f !!:STJ .. :~NT \ 
Defendant 

IN EQUITY 

The c·ooplainf;.nt 

requests t he oral examination of t he following named witnesses 

on her behalf, viz.: 

E . A. Shaffer 
:M . o. Discher 
J . R. C:f.:OSby 
Joseph D. Berouj on 
Junius W. Woolf 

sa.id witnesses reside in the County of lfo bi 1 e , 

State of Alabama. 

c. A. Strain 

who resid&t Mobile, Ala. 

is sugg·ested ae a suitable person to be appointed Commissioner to take the depositionS of said 

witnesli=.-3 on such oral examinations . 

/A. ~C" ~~ ~---------7·----------------------------~------------· 

SolicitorJfor ------C.omplainant ______________________ , 



No ........................ . 

B.LDWIN 
Circuit Court of "tt1U:bxCounty 

Mobile, Alabama 

IN EQUITY 

..... .. _ ........ .:MAJG .I.E. . .RO.B.tiL..'li~S. ... ............ . 

.. . ... ... ___ .............. __ ____ ... QQroD.l-.~.i.U9-.nt .... . 
VS. 

·-------------~Jl.QIUW~.N .. h.B.S..T.iA.C.T. __ &. __________ _ 

------------------------------ -- --------n-efena:arit--------

Demand for Oral Examination 

Filed · - - - ---~-·-f.--- ...... 192/. .. 

tJ . . 

Registe r 

POW• ftS PAIHTIH O CO. 

' 

. . . .. ,...., 



v 

e he_·eb ~7aive :toticc o::: Comp1'"'i:i1 i.1t ' s a lie iOi" 

\' i "t;1_ ' • c "t.ll- [; no is ioner ~ co · to ta~~ W Jr; t.>L tmoay 

o::: sue 1 1..i. ~·1es s at S'l: ch tir.e and 1 1 c in tbc Cit o: · o _ i1 

o: '1ith 
/)'L/ 

J:. -_c : • ) 0 

• 

o:. 

on 11 t. 



:OMMISSION TO TAKE DEPOSITION. (Box 649.) MARSHALL lo BRUCE CO., NASHVILLE 

CIRCUIT COURT. The State of Alabama, ( 

................... P.e.1.9:I:.tP:. ....................................... COUNTY. ) ........... J., ... UI.~Y ................................................... Division. 

c ...... Strai n , To ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... . 

or such of you as may act herein, of .................................... ;.5.~ .. l4.Y.:·.t.:g. ................................... County, State of 

................................ :: ... l.-;;-.P. .... , .. ~ ..... ~ ................................... , Greetinjf : 

K.NO W YE, That we, reposint! confidence in your intejfrit y, skill, and ability 

have appainted you Commissioners to take the testimony of-·······································································-·········· 

J:.J .A. Sha:.. e r : • 0 . Di r. c ner J. r-•• Crosbv , Jo fJe 1h :U :Berou.j on, J,1ni us .!oolf, 
.... . . . ..................................... o . . ......... J. ........................................... 1 ................................... tl' ........................................................................................................................... . 

·································································································································································································································································· 

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 
' 

t · l ·t · 't d · · Ci 1 cui t rr t ma ena w~ ness ... e.s ............... ~n a su~ now pen ~njf ~n our ............................................................................... vour 

of ......... .................... J?.:: .. lm . .5.::L ................... County, wherein ................................................................................................................................... . 

· ::a"' i e Rob G :L't s - - -- -- - - == - - - - - - - - - - • -
. ······················· ······· ············· · ······ · ········ ····· · ·· · ·· .. .. ........................ . -<..~ ·-···-·-·-· .. ······ ..... ...... 1 ..... .......................... ............................................ ... ............. . 

Plaintiff-..... , and ... .......... .' .......................... .... 1?.:9:9..11! ... 1§.ill1: ... #.:h.~.~~.~.' ... 9..~ .... ~P:~ ... J~Y..~.~.:~.~~.~?..~ ...... ~.9..~:?.~!:9:..?. ............. . 
t ................................................................................................................................................................................... ................................................................. .............. 

Def endant ....... , and we hereby authorize and empower you to call and cause to come 

~ l!} .A.She 1er, l.i:. O.Dis che r,J._1.Crosby , .Jo f: e ,h Berou,jon , be1 ore you ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. . 

Junius .. oolf, 

............................................................................................................................................................................ -............................................................................ the said 

witnessf2.§ ... and .... t.h.CR.1."J: ......... deposition ......... on the Holy Evanjfelists to talce, as well for the 

.O ..... : .....• .l.C.i.:.Lt.n.t ..•.................... as for the ........................................................ touchinjf ................ ~~}.:-.~.~.!. ............... knowledtfe 
of the matters and things in controversy in said suit, which deposition, when so 
taken, shall be sijfned by said witness ......... and certified by SLWh of you Con~missioners 
as may act herein; and you are further commanded, the deposition, when so taken, 
with this commission, to return under your hands and seals to the Clerlc of said 
Court, with all convenient speed, and any one or more of you Commissioners, are 
authorized to act alone in the premises. 

Witness my hand, this ...... l.B..t. ~.,.,.,. ................... day of. ............ ;.:!;.Y.t.. ............... .': ..... ~~.'4..~ .. ~ .. :::nrr..:.: 

Witness' Fees, - - - //. ...................................... . 

m~ •••• • • •• (Jlerk. Commissioners' Fees, $ ...................................... . 

.--, 

j 



ll~ .. ~ ~ 
~ 'U', ~ • II \ ; lil 

~ 
~ c ~ 

: • -+-:) .... 
~~":~\ I ~ ~ - : ~ 

.... ~ <:);) 
(I) 11.1 

E ;:3 s ...... 
: l ' ~ 

Vl ~ t) 
c3 

~ ~ 
~ z 

ro .. - -i 

I 1- = 'N ' ' ~ 
0 

..J:J. ~ 
t:3 ~ z 0:, 

ta ~ 0 ~ 

;J 
<:);) ~· - q -Vl 

< Vl llol .. 
0 o- rJl 

: 

~= 11.1 
i 

u ~~.~o 

0 Q~ 
rJl 
rJl 

1- r,i 11.1 \.!) 11.1 

, N xo 

i 
z - <a: 1-

~ ;J t-a:: ~ ~ 
~ I I 

.. u 0~ ' N 

.a I 

~ 
~-~ ..s:: 

; z ...., 
rJ) . - 0 ~ 

,. 

u Vi 
i Vl <:);) 

~ i ;:3 

~~ 
~ 

C"J:) 

0 ~ u 

#: 
/ 

DI RECTIONS: 
TO THE COMMISSIONERS IN EXECUTING AND RtTURNING THE COMMISSION. 

1. If the time and place of executing the commission nre not named therein. the Commissioners will subpoena the 

witness to nppcar before them at such lime and place us they may appoint, nnd ndminister the oath to witness. 

2. Either the Commissioners, witness, or some impnrtln I persons, must reduce the answer of witness to writing, as 

near as may be in the language of the witness. 

"3: .. State the caption of the cause at the beginning, and lhen the following heading or title: 
/: , 

By Yirtue of the Commission hereto annexed, issued from tile olllce of tile Clerlt of the Circuit Court oL ____________ _ 

.~ounty, State of .Alabama, we, the Commissioners thet·ein named, baYe called and caused to come before us the said A B, 
', · .• th(j' witness named In said commission, on this ______ day oL ___________ l9L_, at t he ____________ ; and ha\•lng duly cautioned 

1
, nnd sworn the said witness to speak the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, A B, the said witness. deposeth 

and saith as follows: 

First.- To first Interrogatory he saith: 

.Second.-T o second Interrogatory- he sal~ 

First.-'l'o first cross-Interrogatory he saith: 
.• 

.......-:-~ 

4. When the deposition is finished, It m': st be subscribed by the witness and certified as follows: 

We, 0 D nod E F, the Commissioners il1 said commlssilln named, do hereby certify that the foregoing testimony and 

answers, taken clown and written by us In t he words of the \Yitncss, A B, were read oYer to him ; that he assented, swore 

to, and subscribed the same in our presence, at the Ume and place herein mentioned: that we have personal knowledge 

of the personnl identity of said witness [or, if unacquainted with the witness, t hat proof hath been made before us of 

the identity of the sa id witness] ; that we are not of counse l or kin to either of t he parties to said cause, nor Interested 

In the eYenl tbct·eof. And we inclose the said testimony, together with salc1 commission and the Interrogatories, direct 

aud cross, to the snid Clerk of the Circuit Court whence the same emanated, us our full execution of said commission. 
Gh·en under our bands and seals, this ______ day oL _______________ l9L_ 

-------------------------- [L. S.] 

-------------------------- [L. S.] 

X ext unite t he commissions, interrogatories, and answers togethet·, with "·afers or tape; seconn, envelope all, sealed 

with three seals ; third, write each Commissioner's name acro ss each seal; and, fourth, write on the envelope the names 

of the parties and witnesses, and direct it thus: 

CD u. E f 

To .............. . . ......................... ........ ...................... Esq., 
CLERK OF T H t CI RCUIT COU RT. 

DEPOSITION Of 

AB 

.County, .!lla. 

~- The p ack age rna )' by sent ~y rna ll or private c onveyance. 

\ 



The State of Alabama, Mobile County 

Maggi a -.!l.o. b<>Pt<>y ------------------------------ i 
Circuit Court 
IN EQUITY 

AT MOBILE, ALA. 
vs. 

Bu_Qbman.._AbaiLr.n.c±--&:..-I.nv.e.stment--G&.------ ) TLn-••mnO. .. F:~::~--A~::mn-- • 
- ----- - --- --------- - ----- - --- _! __ -----.---- - -

KNOW YE, That we in confidence of your prudence and fidelity, have appointed you, and by these 

presents do give you ~r~ full power and authority to take, upon oral examination, the deposition of 

- --------- ----------~-~~-JB~tunaJtn_ _________________________________________________ _________ _ 

--------------------------------------------------------~------ - -- - ---------------------------------

_____________________________________________________ _____________ _____ Jil ___________________ ______ _ 

- ----------- - ---------- - -------- - --- ____ _____ _ as witness on part oL __ __ _ Cl,e_;ff2p_4ant __ ___ __ _____ _ 

in the above entitled cause, and therefore we command you oDC::etlrel::Qjqroo, that at such time and place, or 

imes and places, as you may appoint, of which you will give ________ ··vfl&- ____ ______ days' notice to all the 

parties, or their solicitors of record in said cause, viz: to ____ ·· ------------- - ---- - --- -- _______________ ___ _ _ 

s. c. J enkins , D. B. 0obbs solicit ors for defendant , ___ _ __________ __________________________ _________ J _ ______ _ ____ _ _______ ______________ _____ ____ ______ _ 

you do cause the said witness to come before you, dt::oe1ttmex..""llt~cy.M:~¥; and then and there 

examine ________ ______ ____ ____ ~!~---- - ----·--- - __ on oath, on the interrogatories and cross-interrogatories, 

which may be then and there propounded to them by the said part y . And that you or.~~. do 

take such examination, and reduce the same into writing and and return the same annexed to this Writ. closed 

up under your seal , ooct~~~~ into our said Circuit Court, wi th all convenient speed, that the 

same may be read in evidence on the trial of the cause aforesaid. 

WITNESS: JAMES A. CRANE, Register of our said Court, at office 

_J.s.t._,_ __ day of ____ A:uguet . ___ __ _____ 191 __ 7_! 

ATTEST: 
/) A • • 17 _A? /"" u /.1 A 

. .ULJ··~~~------- - --.: __ L./~----~--­
Register 



TO THE COMMISSIONER : 

In executing the within commission, you wil l please be particular in observing the following rules: 
Your certificate must show that you caused the witnesses to come before you at some specified time and place, 
or times and places; that said witnesses are known or have been made known to you, and that they were duly 
sworn by you; that they testified as it is set down; that the testimony was by you reduced to writing, and that 
it was subscribed by the witnesses in your presence after having bren first read over to them. And further, that 
you are not of kin nor of council to either party to the suit and that you are not in any manner interested in the 
result thereof. All the papers returned by you should be attached together, all enclosed in an envelope; this 
envelope should be sealed up by you, and across the seals of the same you should write your name or names. 
The title of the case must be endorsed on the outside o! the envelope; also the names of the witnesses examined, 
and whether for the complainant or defendant. On the commission itself must be marked the amount of your 
fees, and if paid, by whom. The package should then be directed to the Register, Circuit Court Mobile County, 
Mobile, Ala. 
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No .. 32~. _________ _ 

gie Roberts, 

vs. 

Buchman Abstract & Investment 

Company. 

This cause is submitted upon complainant's motion to 
modify decree rendered April 10, l918,and' to set aside the sub­
mission, and being duly considered, the Court is of the opinion 
that said motion should be grante~ it is therefore ordered, 
adjudged and decreed by the Court that said motion be and the 
same hereby is granted and that the decree rendered April 10, 
1918, and the submission of this cause made on February 8, 1918, 
be, and the same hereby are set aside and the taking of further 
testimony with reference to the payment of taxes for the year 
1906, be and hereby is allowed. 

In term time, May 9, 1918. 

Judge. 



CIRCUIT COURT OF MOBILE COUNTY 
MOBILE, ALA. 

IN EQUITY 

No. -- 326. --- - ~ ----·-

Maggie Roberta, 

vs. 

Buchman Abstract & Investment 
Company. 

0Rl*lt 
DECREE 5ETfg¥~ ASIDE DECBE? OF 
APRIL I , • 

January ~ j:j . Term, ' 9 1 8 

May 9, 1918. 19 1 

Ent. Min. ~ .P~ge " / <:/ 



No._ --326.--- -----

Maggie Roberts, 

vs. 

Buchman Abstract & Investment 

Company. 

This cause coming on further to be heard upon the 

dEillurrer of the defendant to the motion of the complainant to 

set aside submission and modify decree rendered April 10, 1918. 

a.nd being submitted and duly considered by the Court, it is 

ordered, adjudged and decreed by the Court that said demurrer 

to said motion be and the same hereby is overruled. 

In term time, May 9, 1918. 



CIRCUIT COURT OF MOBILE COUNTY 
MOBILE, ALA. 

IN EQUITY 

No·-----32 6.---- ------

Maggie Roberts, 

vs. 

Buchman Abst r act & 

Investment Company. 

ORDER overruling 

demurrer. 

January Term, 19 1 8 

May 9, 1918. 
19 1 

C:nt. Min. _ cXJ folr( _ ... P::~.ge _ 

•' 
r 



..... 

No: 251 I n Lq l d'1in County Ci 1~cuit 

Court. I n Equity • 

!uch nann Abst r Pct srd I nvestm~nt :Jom)arty, T>eiendAnt • 

'rlte je! fJ:r.dc:dJt demr..L'~.ta th~ orR L ext\minn.t ion of W • F. Hoger:~ . , oo R~Hling, 

A. ll. ~ tGih · 1, ~ r.·l Eiija 1 Ard, reaidi ng i u Bn l rl d n 0«nm1y, .\ !.r' • ... r.,. , a a 

Wi tJtess~H fft!' d~ 1 B!..lda.nt and Sllt:,ges ft.l H. . T} • • c orAr, ·vll0 l" OH ictos j.. l'"ly {;"let te 

'!' 'i ... ., ~· ' , ;,11 or ~ .. h t> :"'r • fl i .l l!l o , . J00!)€1' , 

Bern ·r·l .A. . 1· "lin, '\t~)hen CPrlln nrrl C.A.Str a i n, fho resj_ e .l n sroblla, 

J. L 1 (JLl • 

/J-13 6o6h~ 
( . / 

$. e.;~~-;~/ 

~ol t rH 1 ur Def enda r.t • 



The State of Alabama, Mobile County 

rJr{ 01;f>T~ &?~Complainant Circuit Court of Mobile County 
No. ~~~ 

IN~ EQUITY 

The 

requests the oral examination of the following named witness 

on behalf, viz: 

said witnesses reside in the County of 

State of Alabama. 

who reside at 

is suggested as suitable person to be appointed Commissioner to take the deposition of 

said witness on such oral examination 

g~~ 
~ ·-

Solicitor for {?.b ~ 



No. ~ :U (, 

Circuit Court of Mobile County 

\. 

Mobile, Alabama 

IN EQUITY 

vs. 

Demand For Oral Examination 

R egister 

I ~ 



l MAGGIE ROBERTS, COMPLAINANT, 

vs 

BUCHMAN ABSTRACT & INVESTMENT l 
COMPANY ,RESPONDENTS AND CROSS.. 
COMPLAINANTS. 

NO. 326. 
IN EQUITY. 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT 
OF MOBILE COUNTY,ALA. 

Comes the Complainant and moves the Court to re­

open the cause and modify the decree of April tenth, Nine­

teen Hundred and Eighteen, GB.djudging the Cross-Compl~inant 

as the owner of ghe land, upon the following grounds: 

FIRST: Because at the hearing of the cause, Complainant 

was prevented from offering in evidence her tax receipt 

showing the taxes were paid for the year in which the lands 

were sold, by the statement of the Court from the bench to 

the effect that the one issue was one o! posseasion and 

that should said receipt seem to be material, Complainant 

would be allowed to reopen said cause, and make proper proof 

of the authenticity of said receipt, which Complainant was 

ready ~nd willing to do. 

SECOND: Because from the finding of the Court as expressed 

in the opinion, the possession of both parties to the cause 

was a scrambling possession, which would not sustain the 

cross-bill any more than the original bill. 

THIRD: Because evidence o! Respondents' alleged possession 

was dependent upOn the admission of its tax deed which was 

not admissible under Chancery Rule 64. 

FOURTH: Because the burden was upon one claiming under a 

tax title to show that taxes were not paid for the year, for 

the non payment of which said tax title is based. 

FIFTH: Because pL the burden of showing that the tax sale 

and proceedings leading up to the sale complied with Sections 

2268 and 2478 was upon Cross-Complainant and such proof was 

not made. 

SIXTH: Because failure to show compliance with Code Sec-

tiona 2268 and 2278 not only rendered the tax deed void, 

. ~ 



but would not furnish a basis for the three year Statute 

of Limitations to be invoked. 

SEVENTH: Because the tax deed was in evidence only as color 

of title and not as a tax deed and hence 1 while it might be 

considered as supporting a disputed possession~ coul~ not 

oe the basis of an adverse ti-tle, and therecy avidence suP-­

porti~ the cross-bill. 

EIGHTH: Because the tax deed and ola.im of Cross Complainant 

is based upon the sale of taxes assessed to Mary James, 

wijose life interest is shown to have since terminated. 

~~'~LZL&,._Q~ 
Solici~ for Complainant. 
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MAGGIE ROBERTS 

vs 

BUCHMAN ~S~RACT & INVEST­

MENT COMPANY. 

MOTION TO-
MODIFY DECREE OF APRIL lOth. 

Rickarby,Austill & Beebe, 

Attorneys • 

• 



J,I.u.G I~ ~O_j.a:::\.1. .j 

GOJ.......:'lMil. AJ 'L· . 

vs 

BUCH~AN ABSTRACT & INVEST-: 
MENT COUP ANY, DEFENDANT. 

,.1.~. c lliCU ll COU1~~ UF J.iO.JIL;.! 

C 0 Ul. '.i'Y , ALAI).A.:!A • 

Ii. ~ .. U I~Y. 

I:.~ LROG .~O?.I.. .... 3 .LlhQ_;QUl..:;)~D J..'O l.L1.GU I~ HO.u.Jl ~ S , 89GO 
..!J.XCHAi.G~ AV.cll.UE ::>Ou~H , CHICAGO , ILlil!OIS , ~II~ll~db 1'0R 
CO:i:I..t.>L IlLU. ~ , ~y CO~.I..t.>l.;.IL~u '.:' S A~'TO_ui:::.'Y::; • 

..t!'If.Si: st .... te ,your name , age (..nd address cr:.U. 

llhetn~1· or not you ure co m..Yl ailHlllt in the suit cboy~ . .,.,;:;~ 

named . ~f~ /t~ - J/r'!r' dt - If;,/) 1;~ ~~ h~, 
~ 

j,~cor~D : ::>1 b. te \Ill ether or not :vou claim the 

mmcr ship of lands described as follows: 

~he .. est l:W.li of the Lortlle[..st ~uurt .... 1· a.:nd. "vhe 
~&st .t1al!' o!' the Lorthwest ~...,uarter o!· ::;action Twenty­
one , J..'ovm shi p ..:-ix l::iOU th o:t ..t{Unt e .!!'our LeiSt. , jjald'V:i n 
County , Alt .. bu mu . d1> 

• ... • HIP.D : .J IJ you or • _illY J .n,~. • ...c.::; , or !my one else , 

pc.~T tL.e taxes on these lunds !ul.line due uctober 1st, 

190b·• o.Jtt..te \'l.hethel' or no t you p.:...id tuxes on cny 

otne1· lru1ds in .., ..... ldvlin County 1o r that year. 1f' you 

state that you .fS,id taxes on Sl( <.:H .l t.nds for such year , 

st&te the time, pl~ce and manner o:t p~ymcnt und the 

person to uhom tlley "ilOre pai d . l f you ml.S\7er that y ou 

paid the taxes on those lu.J.ds, state -::netner or not ;',l-ou 

paid "tJhe-:n in person or by ~ai.l . lf you unswer thut you 

paid in person, stute wLetner .fOU .P<-id tnem by check or 

c ~sh . lf ·.n. th check, Ju, ve ;you such orit,incl CHC c.c~ or 

nuve you stub ·:- li so , attach stub or check to your delJ­

osi t i on u.ni mark "Exhibit 11". lf you state that you 

paid through tne mai 1, sta "tJe as ne.u1·ly as you cw1 wn on 

you rnt-ilcd remi t'tt..nce , to whom lette1· >'las addres~ed !md 

re"Ji tt a.nce payalllt~, .ihetner rel'lli tt u1 ce '.7a.s L'l!...de i..1 the 



fora oi cheok, oaah, poatal money order or express money 

order or some other tora. If by cheok sad you have such 

oheok or stub of such oheck, ~ttaoh same to your deposi­

tion sad mark "Exhibit A". If by po s tal. money order or 

express money order, state whether or not you have receipt 

for same. If so, attach to your deposition and mark "Exhi-

bit A"; state what postoffice or express office you bougljt 

such money order and eate of purchase. 

Fourth: If you a.nswer that you paid the taxes in 

person, was a receipt for such taxes given you? If so, 

state whether or not you have such receipt, if eo, attach 

to your answer and mark "~hibit B". 

Fifth: If you answer that you paid the taxes 

through the mail, state whether or not in due course of 

mail you received a receipt for the money sent in payment 

of taxes. If you stat e that you did receive a receipt, 

sta.te whet 1er or not you have suoh reoeipt and , if so, at­

taoh the receipt received by you to your answer and mark 

"Exhibit B". 

Sixth: If you ansvter t hat you did not pay the 

taxes, but that someone else did, state who paid such 

taxes and answer t he questions asked above relative to 

t:Lv-;t:U£~ 
I 

their payment as nearly as can. 

ltors for Compl ainant. 



. ·) 

Complainant suggests Squire S. Burke, 9233 Coo-

meroial Avenue, Chicago, Illinois, eta a sui table person 

to act ao commiosioner to take t he deposition of M~gie 

Roberts under above 
interr~~ ~7tv-Y&~ 

Solicitors f~mplainant • 
• 

Received copy of the foregoing interrogatori~ 

on this the first day of August, Nineteen Hundred and 
• Eighteen. further notioe waive~ ~ 

Er.T3 -
~~~ ~ _· 

Solicitors for Complainant. 
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'-r! tJ JJP e 
Maggie Roberts, 

Com:plainzmt 

vs 

Buchman Abstract & Invest­
ment Con~:pany, Defendant. . 

Interrogatory 

~6iJCfl~ 
~- ~ 

g _____ : 
RiokLrby, Au~till & 5eei e, 
~-·· ·-· __ _ _ Attorneys. 



MAGGIE ROBERTS 

vs. 
BUCHMANN ABST rU.CT AND 

I~ESTMENT COMPANY. 

In the Circuit Court, 

Baldwin County, A:baibama, 

In equity. 

By virtue of the commission hereto annexed, 

j.ssued from t he office of the Clerk of the Cir cuit 

Court of Baldwin County, State of Alabama,!, one of 

~~e Commiss ioners t herei n named , have ca lled and 

caused to come before m~. the said Wilton A. Cooper 

and E. A. Cooper, witnesses nam~d in said commission 

on the .8th day of November, 1920, at the office of 

Bernard A. Carlin, 203 Pollock Building , MobilE'!, 

Alabama, and t he said H. Van Cooper, the other witness 

named in the commission, on the 20th day of November, 

1920 , .at the residence 309 North Joachim Street, 

Mobile, Alabama,; and having duly cautioned and s worn 

t he said witness t o speak the truth , and nothing but 

the truth. the said witnesses depose and say as 

is set forth in the annexed pages of their depositions 

respectively: 



In the Circuit Court, Baldwin Gounty, Alabama. 

'MAGGIE ROBERTS 
In Equity Division. 

vs. 

BUCHMANN ABSTRACT AND I NVESTMENT 
C011PANY, 

-------

DEPOSITIONS OF WILTON A. COOPER, E. A. COOPER and 
H. VAN COOPER, WITNESSES CALLED ON BEHALF OF THE 
RESPONDENT, TAKEN AT TPE OFFICE OF BERNARD A. CARLIN, 
203 POLLOCK BUILDING, n OBILE, ALABAMA, NOVEMBER STH 
1920. 

PRESENT: 

HON. E. G. RICKARBY. Solicitor for Complainant, 
HOH. D. B . COBBS, Solic·i tor for Respondent , 

BERNARD A. CARLIN, Commissioner. 

WILTON A. COOPER. a witness called on behalf of the 

Respondent, after having been first duly sworn, testified 

as follows::-

DIRECT EXAJITl~TION, 
By Mr. Cobbs , 

My name is Wilton A. Cooper. I am a son of 

H. H. Cooper, who was formerly Tax Collector of Baldwin 

County, Alabama. He was Tax Colle~tor during the years 

of 1906 and 1907. He was first Tax Collector in 1901. 

He resigned in 1907, if I am not mistaken, but I don't 

recall that exactly . I would have to look up the re cords 

of that. I am not entirely sure about that. His 

term would have been out in 1907 or 1908. He was elected 

f or two terms, and he resigned a year, I think, before 

his term was out. I don't recall just now when it was 

that he resigned. 

I have examined the paper which you hand me, and I 

see that this i s a tax sale. 

(witness had been handed a paper by Mr. Cobbs) 



2. 

That paper purports to be in the form of a tax deed, dated 

the 9th day of July, 1909. signed J.H. H. Smith, Judge of 

Probate Baldwin County. acknowledged and recorded. and 

relates to west ~lf of northeast quarter and east half of 

northwest quarter of Section 21, township 6 south of range 

four e~st. and recites amongst other things that that 

land was returned for taxation for the tax years of 1906,-

I attach that paper as an exhibit to this my deposi-

tion. 

Said paper is herewith returned, attached here­
to and made a part of this deposition, the same 
being marked Respondent's Exhibit "A". 

Witness Continued:-

I know nothing about this. All this 

business was hamdled by my brother and I could not attach 

that under those circumstances . 

~. I don't ask you to testify about that paper,·- I 
/ 

simply a sk that that paper be attached to your deposition. 

Ana. I ~on't care to commit myself that v~y.-- I don't 

know anything about it. 

~. I just asked you to identify it,- that is all. 

Ams. I don't know anything about the form. 

~. I am simply asking you to attach that to your depo-

aition? Ans. I could not even do that because I didn't 

have anything to do with it. 

~. I simply descri~ed that to identify it. 

Ana. All I can say is this---

Q. I do not ask you to say anything about it,-- don't 

say anything about it. 1~. Cooper. Ans. All right. 

~. Here is a paper consisting apparently of different 

pieces worn apart or torn apart, and pasted toget1ter. or 

else not worn apart or torn apart, but pasted upon another 

piece of paper. and the ~ole pmrports to be a receipted 

bill for the taxes of 1906, assesPd to Mary James in 



Baldwin County. Alabama. and purports to be signed ~n the 

name of H. H. Coop..er. Tax Collector of Bald\Vi n County. and 

of the date of such purported receipt all that seems to 

appear is the word "Feb. 1906". and said paper is attached 

to ano~er paper purporting to be the deposition of Maggie 

Hoberts taken and sworn to on January 15th, 1919 in this 

cause, while it was pending in the Circuit Court of Mobile 

County, in Equity and Numbered 326 on the docket of that 

Court of Maggie Rober ts. Complainantn vs. Buchmann Ab­

stract and Investment Company. Defendant,--examine that 

so-called tax receipt l~ . Cooper. if you please? 

1~. Cobbs thereupon handed to the witness the 
tax receipt referred to. 

Witness testified as follows:-

I have examined it. I 

might say that I was a clerk or agent of my father in 

ta Tax Collector's office of Baldwin County, continuously 

during the term of office,- that is, off and on while 

I was in the County,- I wa.s acting always as his agent. 

hel_ping him out and collecting his taxes. I knew my 

father's signature. I knew my father's signature during 

the time that he was Tax Collector. 

The signature of the name "H.H.Cooper" • upon that 

paper purporting to be a tax receipt that I have been 

asked about heretofore, is not and was not my father's 

signature. 

During these years,- that is, 1906 and 1907, dur i ng 

the latter part of his term of office, I was a clerk of 

my father in my father's office, 

I am thirty-seven years of age. My father had 

other clerks in his office besides myself. My brother, 

H. Van Cooper, was his Chief Clerk. and he did all of 

his office work. I knew then and know now the handwri~-
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ing of both my father and my brother, H. Van Cooper. 

That signature "H.H.Cooper" upon that purported 

receipt that I have been aked about is not in the hand­

writing of my brother H. Van Cooper. 

That signature "H.H.Cooper" upon that purported 

receipt is not in my hand-writing. 

That signature"H.H.Cooper" upon that purported 

receipt that I have just been asked about is not in the 

handwriting of anyone who was an agent of my father 

to receive tax monies that I know of. I knew all 

of the clerks or agents of my father in the tax office. 

Those clerks were: myself and my brother H. Van 

Cooper and my father, and sometimes W. G. Hall would 

sometimes help us out. He was Chief Clerk in the 

Probate Judge's office, and when \re were not there, he 

would receive the taxes. 

He is now dead. 

His name was W. Gaskey Hall. 

During t he eeason, in the Fall of t he year, when we 

would go around and make appointments, we would have 

deputies to go around there at these different polling 

places to collect taxes. Those places were the different 

polling precincts,-to collect taxes just at that time,­

that would be in October or 'November. 

I do not know whether Urs. Maggie Roberts in 1906, 

or 1907, or 1908, or 1909, was or was not living in Ala­

bama. I never knew where she lived and don't know. I 

do not know whether during.all those four years or during 

any of them, she was living in Baldwin Co unty. 

know anyth ing about Where she was living. 

I do not 

The ~me "H.H.Cooper" signed upon that purported 

tax receipt that I have been asked about , is not in the 

hand~~ibing of said W. G. or w. Gaskey Hall. 

When we started out meeting those appointments, if 



5. 
would be around about the first of October, and it would 

take us about fifteen days, and one party would go to the 

north part of the Cpunt~. and the other would go to the 

south end, and then in November, we would make another 

round. We would start out about the first of October 

and we would be engaged in doing this until the 

middle of October. We would make our rounds and 

stop and then the taxes would become delinquent the first 

of January, and I would ride over the County and collect 

the taxes mostly. My duty was to go around the 

precincts from house to house~r~ collect the taxes until 

after January lat. after they became delinquent. After 

January, while I made those ro vnds too, I did not go from 

house to house. canvassing. V/YI en I fin!ilshe d tho a e 

rounds, I was through with my father's work. I wasn't 

the regular man i~ the office. My father's office didn't 

require two men, and my brother Van, was the regular office 

man. a~d he was there all year round. I was there from 

time to time at times , but I never fooled around much in 

the o ~fice. After January lst I would be on the road col­

lecting. 

When I was in the office I was authorized to receive 

tax monies. When my brother, Van, was in the office, he 

was authorized to receive tax monies. Myself and my 
brother, Van, were the only t 

agen s of my father authorized 
to receive those tax monies at the 

office or in the or-
fice. other than t t· a ~mea, W? G. Hall waa. He was 
connected with the Judge 

of Probate's Office, and 
we were out h when 

• e would sometimes come in and . recelve monies for us. 

When he received those monies 
from a tax payer, he 

for the taxes' 
was authorized to . 

g~ve a receipt 

signed my father's name by 
him. 

and he 
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The Tax Collector or his cler ks or agents would not 

know in February, 1906, what would be the tax amounts for 

that yeo.r, 1906. They wo uld not hav e any \~Y of knowing 

until the T~x Commi s sion would pass up on t he rate and they 

made the book up,- the Tax Assessor's book. 

CROSS EXAMINATION, 
By Mr. Ri ckarl;Jy, 

This receipt about which I testified is written upon 

one of the blanks of the tax bills, and that blank is 

a tax bill plank for 1906. Those bills, according to 

the custom of t r e office, were sent out to tax payers 

to let them know the amount of their i~debtedness for that 

year. 

Other than the signature this is apparently a bill 

re ~ularly made out in t he tax collector's office Number 

on page 302, and made out by my brother Van. 

rt was not customery. however, to give receipts on 

those forms. As to why the words "received pf\yment" 

appear on them, - they were printed in that form, and 

our receipts were stub-pooks,-- I reckon some of the 

old records are there now. They were stub books that 

we gave receipts out of. We would tear the receipt 

out. and leave t he carb on copy in the book. 

IT WAS HERE AGREED by and betwe en Counsel for both 

sides that the witness would testify as follows: 

"In the book. marked Tax Receipts. 1907. Baldwin 

County, Alabama, Manufacturwd by Roberts and Son, of Birmi@8 

ham, Alabama. and which is the stub book of tax receipts 

for that year. I find a number of carbon duplicates of 

receipts signed by me. The number of those signed by 

me are: 4925. 4927. 4928, 4929. 4930, 4931, 4933· 4934, 

4935. 4936. 4937. 4939. 4940, 4941. 4942. 4943. 4944. 4945 
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4946. 4947. 4948. 4949. 4~52. 4953. 4954. 4959. 4960, 

4961. 4962, 4966, 4967. 4970. 4977. 4979. 4981, 4982, 

4983, 4984, 4985. 4987, 4988, 4990, 4991, 4998.- but all 

of these relate to other peoples' taxes, and not to 

those of Mrs. Maggie Roberts, or Hrs. Mary James." 

Respondent objected to this testimony upon the 
ground that the iredicate haA not been laid, second, 
because none of them are carbons of tax receipts of 
either Mrs. Mary James or Mrs. Maggie Roberts. 

Witness Continued:-

As a matter of fact , during the years 

1905, 1906 and 1907, my father had a very little to do 

with t~e work of the tax office personally. He had 

very little to do with it personally all the way through. 

Van did most of his work; he did all of his bookkeeping 

and all that all the \my through. 

Van and ~yself ran the entire office,- handled the cash 

and were generally in charge, under my father's instruc-

tiona. Under his general instructions. Van did it 

mostly because at times I was there, and then I would 

be out making the rounds and picking up taxes. Van 

handled the cash. Van was reRlly the head of the 

office. 

Nobody, but us two, had anything to do with the 

books or the finances of the office, except for the 

general supervision and looking over that my father gave 

from time to time. 

Q,? Do you know, of your own knowledge , whether , or 

not, the accounts of your father with the State of Alabama 

and with the County of Baldwin. were short during the 

year 1905? 

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground that it calls for evidence that is imma­
terial. 

Ans. I do not know,- no sir; I had nothing to do with the 

settlement of the estate, or the accounting, or anything. 
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~. Do. you know anything about whether a complete and 

full settlement for the taxes was Made for 1906? 

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground that it is immaterial. and second, be­
cause it is irrelevant. 

Ana. I do not. because I never had anything to do 

whatever with the settlement in any way. 

~. Would the same be youe answer as to settlement for 

taxes for 1907? 

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground, first. that it is immaterial, and 
Kecond, that it is irrelevant. 

Ans. I could not answer it just that way.-- I don't know. 

I never had anything to do with the settlement, and 

never f'ooled with the books. 

~. There was some trouble with the estate, wasn't there? 

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground that taesane calls for irrelevant and 
immaterial testimony. 

Ana. Yes air. 

~. Is it not a fact that your father was removed from 

office during the year, 1907? 

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground that it calls for immaterial testimony. 

Ana. He resigned. 

~. Did, or not, the Bonding Company make up the dif­

ference with the State a nd with the County, between the 

amount paid in by the Baldwin Tax Collector's office, 

and the amount that the examination of Judge Purifoy• 

showed to be due for the years 1906 or 1907? 

Respondent objected to the question, first. on 
the ground that it does not show as to what 
period of time it relates, and second, upon the 
ground that it is immaterial. 

Ana. I could not tell you whether they did, or not. I 

understand it did, but I don't know about that. I 

don' t know. 

Respondent objected to that portion of the ab­
swer in which he states that he understands, ~tc., 
upon the ground that it is hearsay. 



~. Mr. Cooper, di dn't the Grand Jury indict your father 

about that time? 

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground first. that this calls for secondary 
evidence, second, because it calls for imma­
terial evidence. and third, because it does 
not call for any disposition of any indictment 
that might have beerr made. 

Ana, May I refuse to answer that question.---

Q. 

~-

They did. 

Respondent moved to exclude the answer of the 
witbess upon each of the grounds assigned in 
objection to the question. 

In what year did your father die? Ana. In 1909. 

This matter was still pending at that time , 

wasn't it? 

Respondent objected ~o the question upon the 
same grounds assigned to the last preceding 
objection to question. 

Ana. Yea. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION, 

~. Who was it, if anyone. who attended to the making 

out of the list of lands to be sold for non-payment of 

taxes in that office while your father was Tax Collec-

tor, and attended to the matter of having such sales 

made? 

Complainant objected to the question because the 
subject matter was not introduced on direct 
examination, nor is the question i n rebuttal 
of any matter brought out on erose examination. 

(witness made no answer) 

Witness Continued:-

A robbery occurred~n t he office of 

the Tax Collector. Let's see, I am mixed up as to the 

date this robbery occurred. I ~on't know whether it 

waa 1906 or 1907,-- I can't get that straight. 

It occurred in the fall of the year. if I am not mistaken 

so far as I know. my father v~s never tri ed on any 

i ndictment, and he was never convicted. 
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I said it v~s the custom of the Tax Collect 1r•s 

office to s end bills to tax payers showing what they 

owed from time to time, and whenever money ~ms paid 

it was the custom to give or send the tax payer a receipt 

All of such receipts were signed in the name of H. H. 

Cooper. 

Q. state what you know, if anything, about whether 

this property concerned in this cas e was sold by the 

Tax Collector as for nonpayment of taxes. 

Complainant objected to the question, first, because 
it is too general, second, because it calls for hear­
aay evidence; third, ~ecause the previous testimony 
of the witness shows that his clerical duties were 
confined to simply collecting money and that the 
management and details of the office was conducted 
by the Chief Clerk, Mr. Van Cooper. 

Ana. I could not say because I don•t k now. 

- - - ~ - - - - -
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E. A. COOPER, a witness called on behalf of the 

Respondent, after havi~g been first duly sworn, 

testified as follows:-

DIRECT EXA!~INATION, 
By Mr. Cobbs • 

My name is E. A. Cooper. I am a son of Hr. H. H. 

Cooper who used to be the ~ax Collector of Baldwin County 

I am thirty-five years old )and will be thirty-six this 

coming February. 

I was acquainted with my father's signature. 

(Mr. Cobbs thereupon handed a 'paper to the witness) 

~. Here is a paper attac~d to wh~~- purports to be the 

deposition of l~s. Mag~ie Rober ts in her case a~inst 

the Buchmann Abstract & Investment Company. No. 326, in 

the Circuit Court of Mobile County, taken while this 

cause was pending in that Court, and purporting to be a 

bill for Mrs. Mary James' taxes in Baldwin County f or the 

tax yearz of 1906, and purporting to be signed in the 

name of H. H. Cooper, Tax Collector of Baldwin County, 

an~ so far as appears, purporting t o have been signed on 

some unatated date in February. 1906.- please examine 

that paper and tell me when you have examined it. 

Ana. I have examined this. I have seen this before. 

I think I have. 

Witness Continued:-

The signature of the name H. H. Cooper at 

the bottom of that bill is not in the handwriting of my 

father, H. H. Cooper, formerly Tax Collector. I am 

very familiar Vlith t he handwrit ing llf my brother. H. 

Van Cooper. 

I am also ve¥y familiar with the handwri ting of my 

brother. Wilton A. Cooper. That name "H. H. Cooper" 

is not in the han1v.Titing of my father, but I will not 

state that it is not in the !handwriting of my brother 



H. Van Coopel!., 
swear to. 

That would be a hard thing for me to 

My best knowledge is that it is not, but I won't 

swear that it is not. I will swear that it is not 

my father's, but I cannot swear that it is not my 

brother's because I don't know whether it is or is 

not. Anybody can \~ite funny ways, you know. 

That signature does not look like the handwriting of 

my brotber, Wilton A. Cooper. It does look like 

the handwriting of my brother. Van.- it ~esembles it, 

but it is not his. I do not thirik it is his. 

My father's hand,~iting was very poor, but his signature 

was written very firmly, but in bad order generally. 

It was a very heavy hand. I am a good penman and so 

are all my broters. None of us have shaky hands. 

I have never noticed that my brother, Van, or my brother 

Wilton, ever wrote in a shaky hand. 

I have seen their handwriting a great deal. I am 

very familiar with them. 

I was never at any time an agent of my father's in 

the Tax Collector's office. I was in school while he 

was in office,- that is, most of the time. I never had 

anything to do with his office whatever. 

CROSS EXAMINA~ON, 
By Mr. Ri ckarby , 

Qonsidering that thing is written on rough paper and has 

been somewhat blurred by having been wet, I am not willing 

to swear that that could not have been \~itten by Van 

Cooper with a scratchy pen and on a rough board. such 

as would be on the counter of a post office. 

not willing to swear that he did not write it. 

HE-DI~T EXA!:INATION, 
By Mr. Cobbs. 

I am 

I do not recall ever being in the office when Van signed 
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any paper on that order on a rough board. I do not 

remember anything like that. 

To the beet of my knowledge and opinion, that is 

not my brother. Van's signature or handwriting. It 

is not in his handwriting.f£' ~~ ~ 

C{/(DfJ-o-6'-' / I 
/ 

Owing to the illness of tlhe remai ning 
witness. H. Van Cooper. the CoMmissioner 
thereupon adjourned. to be continued at 
a date agreeable to the attending phy­
sician of said H. Van Cooper. 
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The witness. H. Van Cooper, was called as a 

witness before the commissioner, on this daY, Novenber 

20th, 1920, at 3 o• clock, P, JA. , and llr. Cobbs, Solicitor 

for Respondent, s.nd J.1r. E. G. RickarbY, Solicitor for 

complai na.nt , being present. the witness was sworn 

by the commissioner to speak the truth, the vmole truth 

Said testimony being taken 
and nothing b~ the truth. 

at the residence of the witness H. Van Cooper, 309 

North Joachim Street. Mobile, Alabama. 

- - - - - - ... 

H. VAN COOPER. a witness called on behalf of the 

Respondent, after having been fir s t duly svrorn, testified 

as follows: 

H. 

of 

My name is H. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
:By 'Mr. C ebbs , 

Van Cooper. I am a 

H. Cooper, deceased. who was formerly 

Bald.win County. Alabama. My a:ge is 

son of 1·r. 

Tax Collector 

41 years. 

my a her's office, or an agent of I was a clerk in f t 

my father in the matter of collection of taxes for about 

seven years, I believe. I was such for the years 

from 1900 to 1907. I was such and was th ere during 

the tax year of 1906. I was his Chief Clerk. For 

the most part, I conducted the running of the books of 

collections Dur' • ~ne that time 

brother from time to • 

his office and making 

he also had my time act as clerk 

also. This brother's name is Wilton A. Cooper. 

I remember testifying in this matter 

I 

once before 

remember b · • e~ng shown th 
to be a en a paper 

receipted tax bill for 

purporting 

the :Baldwin County taxes 

1906 vri th the name of H. H. fDr the tax year of Cooper 

as Tax Collector, appearing to have been 
paper by someone. signed upon that 



~. no you remember the date of it at the bottom, or 

the receipt part of it.- so far a s appeared to be on 

some unstated day in February, 1906? 

Q,. 

Complainant objected to the question, first, 
because it is leaqing, second, because the paper 
testified about is not exhibited t rn the witness 
for the purpose of identification. 

no you remember having seen that paper? Ans. 

Yes sir. 

Witness Continued:- I knew, during his life, the hand-

writing and signature of my father. 

Q,. Was it writ ten in a firm. ernooth hand or did it 

appear to be shaky or nervous, or as if he was sick 

or weak? 

Complainant objected to t he ques tion, first 
because it is leading. 

Ans. It was written in a firm hand. 

Witness Continued:-

The signature of my father's name upon 

that instrument that I have just been asked about, ~~e 

not written in the handwriting of my father. That 

name was not written in my handwriting either. It 
' 

was not v~itten in the handwriting of my brother, Wilton 

A. Cooper. 

As to what other person ever ha d any authority to 

receive tax monies duri ne t hat time rmil e my f ather v~s 

Tax Collector, besides him and mys elf a nd my brother, 

Wilton A. Cooper.- Gaskey Ha ll use d to r ec eive t axes 

while we were out of t he office. We m~ ght have been 

home to dinner at the time. At that time Gaskey 

Hall was Tax Asses s or's clerk. Sometimes , we might be 

out at dinner or stepped over to the Post Office, and 

someone would drop in and pay tl1e taxes, and he would 

collect for i s , and turn the JTlOney over to us when we 

returned. That was done seldom, a nd not often. 
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The name of my father upon the paper I have been 

ask'ed about. v.ras not signed in the handwriting of Gaskey 

Hall. 

The taxes on that property, concerned i~ that 

tax rec·eipt which I have seen, were not paid to me for 

the tax year of 1906. 

I made up the lists of lands for sales for non­

pa~ent of taxes when that vms done. Before rna~ing 

up the lists of lan~s for tax sales for non-payment 

of taxes, I checked back against my stub books and 

examined the records of our office to see what lands to 

advertise for sale . 

As to whether I remember any peculiarity about that 

paper you have asked me about, which purports to be a 

receipted tax bill for taxes assessed to !~rs. !Iary James 

for the year 1906, I do remember such peculiarity,- I 

remember the date was peculiar. As to whether there 

was anything peculiar about the appearance of it~- i}' 

appeared to have been torn·. I am not sure whether 

it had been pasted together again, but I think it had 

when I last saw it. 

I last saw that paper when I was being examined 

as a witness in this case before when this case was in 

the Circuit Court of Mobile County. 

To the best of my knowledge, the taxes on that 

land for that ¥ear, 1906, were not paid. 

~. lus. Mag ~ie Roberts testified in this case once 

before, as to how she claimed to have remitted the tax 

monies for that year.- I think about thirteen yea11s 

prior to her testimony, and ~tated in her deposition 

that she had sent it by cash by mail.- did you ever 

receive the cash remittance, or not? 

Ans. By mail,--- Yes sir. 

Q. I mean the cash remittance of J'rs. Roberts? 
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Ahs. Oh,- No sir, not to my knowledge. 

Witness Continued:-

It was not customary in the offi ce for 

any tax payers to be permitted to pay taxes prior to 

the tine when they became due, and were collectible. 

There was no way for anybody to know in the month of 

February, 1906, or in February, 1907, or in February 

1908, or in February Of any other tax year, what the 

State and County taxes would be for that tax year. 

The books were not turned over to us until July,- that 

is the 1906 taxes were not turned over to us until 

July, 1906, and that would be after the County Commissio~ 

era had sat upon the quest ion of what the county taxes 

should be. 

I do not remember just , . .,.hen my father died~ but I 

could find out from my moth er. If this suit was brought 

in 1916 in the Circuit Court of Mobile County, my father 

was dead at that time. To the best of my recollec-

tion, he lived about four years after g~ing oUt of 

office. 

He had no other clerks or agents authorized to 

receive tax monies in Bay Minette other than myael~ and 

the men that I have named. 

CROSS EXAMIN.A'RION, 
By lir. Ri ekarlsly, 

I was Chief Deputy for my father during t h e ti me that 

I was in his office, e nd I had general charge and super-

vision of the office. My father had very little to do 

with the clerical part of it. He very seldom signed 

any receipts. I handled the banking and the books and 

kept things running, and my brother Wilton viDs just a 

clerk, and occasionally Gaskey Hall would help me out 

in t r.ere • Hy brother vrould help out occas i onally, amd 
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then he would go out in one end of the County. He would 

take one end of the County, when we went around and rr..ade 

our appointments. 

I think I was in there from 1900 to 1907. My 

father resigned from the office in 1907, e.nd at that time 

I had charge of the books and affairs and knew generally 

what was going on in the office at that time. I think 

the taxes on that Mary James property had been paid 

regularly up to the tax year of 1906, but our records 

would show, and I am not sur~ about it. 

~. But if it was assessed for 1906----

Respondent objected to the question upon the 
ground that there is no evi dence that it v~s 
~ssessed for the prior years that Counsel is 
talking of. 

~. If it was assessed for 1906, the taxes had been 

paid prior to that time, had they not.-- certainly for 

the year of 1905? 

Respondent objected to the question upon t h e 
further ground that it calls for a conclusion 
or assumption or guess of the witness and is 
incompetent. 

Ana. They could have escaped assessment or something 

like that. Frequently taxes on land did escape. 

~. Escaped assessment? Ans. Yes sir; skipped a year; 

assessors overlooked it, and nobody paid on it. 

~. Then you don't know one way or the other whether 

those taxes had been paid for the four or five years 

prior to 1906? Ana. I would not say for sure, but I 

na ~urally would suppose they were, because they would 

have been sold for taxes if they had not been paid. 

Respondent objected to and moved to exclude that 
part of the answer of t :r.e witness which eta tea 

that it would have been sold for taxes if it had 
not been paid, upon the ground that it is a 
conclusion of the witness. 

Witness Continued:-

As to what became of the stub book for 

1906,- we left all the s tubs in charge of Oscar Hall when 




